
PAWN BROKER REGULATION, 
SECONDHAND ARTICLE DEALER AND 

SECONDHAND JEWELRY REVIEW WORKGROUP
Minutes

July 31, 2013

MEMBERS PRESENT: Alderman Rocco LaMacchia, Alderperson Chris Schwartz,
Alderman Curt Wilson, Frank Pacetti, Daniel Miskinis, Matt
Knight and Rich Schroeder

Others Present: Deb Salas

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Alderman Wilson.

1. General discussion of licenses and standards for Pawnbrokers, 
Secondhand Article Dealers and Secondhand Jewelry.

Mr. Knight, gave an overview of the information in the packet,  the purpose of 
Workgroup and the direction of the upcoming meetings.

Mr. Schroeder added that from a Zoning standpoint, these types of businesses are 
allowed in either the B2, B3 or B4 Zoning Districts.  Currently, the only requirement is to 
obtain a license through Chapter 13.

The current Moratorium on the Pawnbroker Licenses will expire on January 6, 2014.
[8 months from May 6, 2013]

The current Moratorium on the Secondhand Article Dealer and Secondhand Jewelry  
License will expire on August 18, 2013.

[90 days from May 20, 2013]

Alderman Wilson said there were a couple of reasons for the moratorium.  After 
reviewing the current Zoning Ordinance, we realized there was no way to deny a 
license, except for their criminal record.  Alderman Wilson said we  want to establish the 
location(s) and number of shops allowed within the City.

Alderman LaMacchia said we currently have 1 Pawn Shop and 10 Secondhand 
Dealers.  Alderman LaMacchia said he would also like to see strict guidelines 
established on location(s) and number with in the City.

Alderperson Schwartz said we need more clarification on the Secondhand Articles 
compared to Jewelry.  There are antique stores that want to sell only a few pieces of 
jewelry.  Do they need both licenses?

Mr. Pacetti said there may be items that don't fall under the title of Article or Jewelry. 
Alderperson Schwartz said an Article Dealer should be separate from the rest. 
Alderman Wilson agreed.

Alderperson Schwartz said maybe if we had language regarding distance between 
establishments, the businesses will spread out on their own.  Alderman LaMacchia said 
maybe Legal can put together a rough draft of what we want and then we can refine.

Pawn Workgroup                                     July 31, 2013                                                                 



Alderman Wilson said we extend the current moratorium at Common Council to allow 
time to finalize the Ordinance.  Mr. Pacetti asked why the Secondhand Article Dealer 
and Secondhand Jewelry moratorium was only set for 90 days?  Alderman Wilson and 
Alderperson Schwartz responded there were a number of applications at that time and 
we didn't want to delay them. 

Mr. Knight said I would like more direction on what you want to seen in the Amended 
Ordinance.  It was decided that members would forward information to Legal for Mr. 
Knight to incorporate into the proposed Ordinance Amendment.

2. Extension of Resolution #72-13.  PUBLIC HEARING

Mr. Knight said the Moratorium on the Secondhand Article and Secondhand Jewelry will 
expire on August 18, 2013.  The Resolution to extend the Moratorium must be on the 
August 5, 2013 Common Council meeting.  Mr. Knight said at this time we need to 
decide how long we want to extend the Moratorium.  Mr. Knight suggested the date 
coincide with the Pawnbroker deadline.  Mr. Knight said we also need the names of the 
sponsor and/or co-sponsor(s).  It was decided that Alderman Wilson would sponsor, 
with co-sponsors Alderman LaMacchia and Alderperson Schwartz.  Alderman Wilson 
will also check with Alderman Gordon and Alderman Juliana.  It was decided to have the 
expiration date of January 6, 2014.

Mr. Schroeder said if you would like to see additional information on how other City's 
handle this issue, let me know and our department can assist.

Alderman Wilson said he would like to start with the distance requirements.

Alderperson Schwartz said she would like more information on the difference between 
antique jewelry compared to places like the "gold exchange".

3. Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, September 4, 2013 at 4:30 in Room 308.

Public Comments

No public comments.

A motion to adjourn was made by Alderperson Schwartz and seconded by Mr. Pacetti. 
The motion passed. (Ayes 7; Noes 0)  The meeting adjourned at 5:50 p.m.

Minutes Prepared by:  Kay Schueffner, Department of Community Development & Inspections

Pawn Workgroup                                     July 31, 2013                                                                 



PAWN BROKER REGULATION, 
SECONDHAND ARTICLE DEALER AND 

SECONDHAND JEWELRY REVIEW WORK GROUP
Minutes

September 4, 2013

MEMBERS PRESENT: Alderman Rocco LaMacchia, Alderperson Chris Schwartz,
Alderman Curt Wilson, Frank Pacetti, Daniel Miskinis, Matt
Knight and Rich Schroeder

Others Present: Michelle Nelson

The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by Alderman Wilson, all members were 
present.

A motion was made by Alderman LaMacchia and seconded by Mr. Pacetti to approve 
the minutes of the July 31, 2013 meeting.  The motion passed. (Ayes 7; Noes 0)

1. General discussion of licenses and standards for Pawn Broker, 
Secondhand Article Dealers and Secondhand Jewelry.  PUBLIC HEARING

Public hearing opened, no comments, public hearing closed.

Mr. Schroeder said the packet has information from Appleton, Green Bay, Madison, 
Milwaukee, Janesville and Racine.  We are reviewing for any special standards, to get 
ideas for a fee structure, definition language and permitted versus conditional uses. 
Kenosha is already entering items into an electronic inventory tracking system that 
reports to the Police Department.

Mr. Knight said the State Statutes only have one page of regulations and don't require 
any license for a Pawn shop.  Kenosha already requires the two sureties, like other 
communities, but we don't have sufficient experience to know if this is enough.

Alderman Schwartz said she would like to separate the three licenses more.  Mr. 
Schroeder said if we get a definition for each one, they could be regulated better.  We 
could regulate the permitted versus the conditional; the license versus the no license or 
have permitted with certain stipulations.  Mr. Pacetti asked if we could have all 
secondhand items except precious metals.  After discussion it was decided that would 
be hard to regulate the various metals.

Alderman Wilson said he would like to find something that doesn't take away from the 
secondhand article and antique dealers.  We should consider the distance exceptions 
as the main factor to the Ordinance, then limit by the Zoning location.

Mr. Knight presented a list of the current pawn and secondhand dealers.  It was decided 
to produce maps to aid the Work Group on the locations of the dealers.  Community 
Development will produce the map and forward to members as soon as possible. 
Alderman LaMacchia noted that current dealers should be grandfathered into any new 
Ordinance, but would be required to purchase the appropriate license.

Pawn Work Group                                     September 4, 2013  



Discussion was held on the cost of current licenses.  A Secondhand Article Dealer 
license is $27.50; Secondhand Jewelry Dealer license is $30.00; Secondhand Article 
Dealer Mall/Flea Market is $165.00 and Pawnbroker is $210.00.  After discussion, the 
Work Group is proposing to increase the licenses to Secondhand Article to $100.00; 
Secondhand Jewelry to $500.00 and Pawn to $1,000.00.  Mr. Schroeder noted that 7 of 
the 10 businesses that have a Secondhand Article license also have a Secondhand 
Jewelry license.

Alderman Schwartz said she would also like to see them do a background check on 
anyone who has a vested interest in the business, not just the applicant.

Mr. Pacetti asked Mr. Knight to create a rough definition for review of the Secondhand 
Article Dealer and incorporate the proposed license fees.  At the next meeting the Work 
Group will focus on the distance requirements, zoning locations, permitted versus 
conditional use and the clarifying the definition.

The next meeting will be held on Monday, October 7, 2013 at 4:30 in Room 308 
conference room.

Public Comments

No public comments.

A motion to adjourn was made by Alderman LaMacchia and seconded by Mr. Pacetti. 
The motion passed. (Ayes 7; Noes 0)  The meeting adjourned at 5:18 p.m.

Minutes Prepared by:  Kay Schueffner, Department of Community Development & Inspections

Pawn Work Group                                     September 4, 2013  


	073113pbminutes
	090413pbminutes

